
 

 

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth 
Leol 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - Y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 13 Hydref 2011  

 

Amser: 
09:30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:  

Marc Wyn Jones 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8505 
CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk  
 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2. Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 2012/2013 Llywodraeth Cymru  
(Tudalennau 1 - 9)  
Llywodraeth Cymru (09.30 – 11.00) 
CELG(4)-05-11 (p1) 
CELG(4)-05-11 (p2) 
 

• Jane Hutt AC, y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Tŷ (09.30 – 10.00) 

• Amelia John, Pennaeth yr Is-adran Cydraddoldeb, Amrywiaeth a 
Chynhwysiant  

• Claire McDonald, Pennaeth yr Uned Cydraddoldeb 
 

• Huw Lewis AC, y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth (10.00 – 11.00) 
• John Howells, Cyfarwyddwr yr Adran Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth  
• Kath Palmer - Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr yr Adran Tai 

  

3. Papurau i'w nodi  (Tudalennau 10 - 25)  
Nodyn Cyngor Cyfreithiol – Rhannu Data 
CELG(4)-05-11 (p3) 
 
Crynodeb – Nodyn Cyngor Cyfreithiol – Rhannu Data 
CELG(4)-05-11 (p3a)  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



 1 

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 

Llywodraeth Leol 

CELG(4)-05-11 : Papur 1 
 

Papur tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol gan y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Tŷ 
 
Y Gyllideb 2012-13: Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 
 
1. Yn Chwefror 2011, cyhoeddwyd Asesiad Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 

Cyllideb Drafft 2011-12 ar y cyd â Chyllideb Derfynol 2011-12. Gwnaeth 
Adrannau Asesiad Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb o’u penderfyniadau eu 
hunain ynghylch dyraniadau cyllideb a arweiniodd at nifer o addasiadau. 
Gwnaed yr Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb hwn ar y penderfyniadau 
strategol a wnaeth y Cabinet ac arweiniodd at gynyddu’r cyllid i 
wasanaethau cymdeithasol a thai a phobl agored i niwed.  

 
2. Ychydig iawn o newid a fu yn nyraniadau eleni o’u cymharu â chyllideb y 

llynedd, a oedd yn gyllideb tair blynedd, felly nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru 
wedi ailadrodd y gwaith manwl a wnaed y llynedd. Ond yr ydym wedi 
gwneud asesiadau lle bu newid yn y gyllideb. Mae’n bwysig fod Asesiad 
o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb eleni ac Asesiadau o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 
Cyllideb 2011-12 yn cael eu hystyried gyda’i gilydd.  

 
3. Lle mae cynlluniau gwario wedi newid o’r rhai a gyhoeddwyd yng 

Nghyllideb y llynedd cafodd asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb ei gwneud 
ac, yn arbennig, mae hyn yn cynnwys dyraniadau ychwanegol ar gyfer: 

 

• Ein hymrwymiadau Pump am Ddyfodol Tecach; 

• Parhau i gyflenwi ein cyfres o fuddion cyffredinol; a 

• Sicrhau cynaliadwyedd ariannol yn y GIG 
 
Asesu’r newidiadau ar gyfer Cyllideb 2012-13 
 

4. Mae’r ddyletswydd cydraddoldeb yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i awdurdodau 
cyhoeddus ddangos eu bod yn gwneud penderfyniadau ariannol mewn 
dull teg, tryloyw ac atebol, gan ystyried anghenion a hawliau gwahanol 
aelodau o’u cymuned. Cyflawnir hyn drwy asesu’r effaith y gallai 
newidiadau i bolisïau ac arferion eu cael ar wahanol grwpiau a 
warchodir. 

 
5. Er mwyn bod yn hyderus bod yr effaith ar gydraddoldeb wedi ei asesu 

ym meysydd y gyllideb, gwnaeth adrannau Llywodraeth Cymru sgriniad 
dechreuol i ystyried a allai hyn gael effaith ar gydraddoldeb fel rhan o 
broses Llunio Polisïau Cynhwysol Llywodraeth Cymru. 

 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



 2 

6. Yn ystod y cam sgrinio, cafodd swyddogion eu llywio i ystyried argaeledd 
ac ansawdd y dystiolaeth i seilio penderfyniadau arni. Roedd y 
penderfyniadau hyn  yn ymwneud â lefel yr effaith wahaniaethol niweidiol 
debygol y gallai’r polisi ei gael ar unrhyw rai o’r llinynnau cydraddoldeb. 
Mesurwyd ansawdd y dystiolaeth a gasglwyd yn ogystal â’r effaith 
wahaniaethol debygol.  

 
7. Yn dilyn y sgriniad dechreuol, roedd yn amlwg wedyn y byddai’r 

newidiadau arfaethedig yn cael effaith sylweddol ar bobl gydag un neu 
fwy o’r nodweddion a warchodir.  Yna roedd angen asesiad manwl i 
ddeall yn well beth fyddai effaith posibl y dyraniadau arfaethedig yn y 
gyllideb.  

 
8. Byddai’r asesiadau manwl fel arfer yn cynnwys asesiad mewn mwy o 

fanylder o nodau ac amcanion y polisi neu arfer, sut maent yn ymwneud 
â chydraddoldeb ac a oes ffyrdd y gallent hyrwyddo cydraddoldeb yn 
well, yn seiliedig ar y dystiolaeth a’r ymchwil a gasglwyd yn ystod y cam 
sgrinio. Dylai arwain at farn gytbwys am lefel yr effaith y gallai’r polisi 
neu’r arfer ei gael ar unrhyw un neu bob un o’r llinynnau cydraddoldeb. 

 
9. Fe’i gwnaed yn eglur y byddai’n rhaid i’r adrannau hynny lle gallai 

asesiadau o effaith ar gydraddoldeb gael eu gwneud ymgysylltu gyda a 
rhoi ystyriaeth i farn rhanddeiliaid perthnasol lle bo hynny’n briodol a 
sicrhau eu bod wedi’u seilio ar dystiolaeth gadarn.  

 
Llunio Polisi Cynhwysol 
 

10. Fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 5, o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru ein dull ar 
gyfer asesu penderfyniadau cyllidebol am effeithiau ar gydraddoldeb yw 
drwy’r broses Llunio Polisi Cynhwysol. 

11. Defnyddiodd Adrannau Llywodraeth Cymru’r canllawiau Llunio Polisi 
Cynhwysol i gynorthwyo i gyrchu at yr holl ddeunydd perthnasol wrth 
wneud eu hasesiadau ac wrth gynghori Gweinidogion am eu 
penderfyniadau. 

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/equality/publications/ipmguide2/?lang=en 

 
 

 

 

Jane Hutt AC 

Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Tŷ 

 
 

Tudalen 2



Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol 
 

CELG(4)-05-11 : Papur 2 
 

Papur tystiolaeth ar y Gyllideb Ddrafft: 
Y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth 
 
Cyflwyniad 
 

1. Mae’r papur hwn yn rhoi gwybodaeth gefndir ariannol i’r Pwyllgor ynghylch 
y cynlluniau gwario ar gyfer y rhannau hynny o bortffolio’r Gweinidog sy’n 
ymwneud â Thai a Threftadaeth, fel yr amlinellir yn y Gyllideb Ddrafft. 

 
2. Yn Atodiad A mae gwybodaeth fanylach am y Gyllideb Ddrafft, fesul Cam 

Gweithredu a’r BEL o fewn pob Cam Gweithredu.  Mae hefyd yn cynnwys 
y cyllidebau drafft ar gyfer y rhan honno o’r portffolio sy’n ymwneud ag 
Adfywio, sy’n dod o fewn cylch gwaith y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes. 

 
Cefndir a Chrynodeb 
 

3. Gellir crynhoi ffigurau’r gyllideb ddrafft ar gyfer y meysydd hynny sy’n rhan 
o gylch gwaith y Pwyllgor hwn fel a ganlyn: 

 

 
Maes  
y Rhaglen Wariant 

Llinell 
Sylfaen 
2011-12 
£’000 

Cyllideb 
Ddrafft 
2012-13 
£’000 

Cynlluniau 
Dangosol 
2013-14 
£’000 

Cynlluniau 
Dangosol 
2014-15 
£’000 

Refeniw:     

Amgueddfeydd, 
archifau a 
llyfrgelloedd 

38,191 37,436 37,445 37,445 

Y celfyddydau 39,428 38,782 39,569 39,569 

Chwaraeon a 
gweithgaredd corfforol 

25,437 24,923 24,853 24,899 

Yr amgylchedd 
hanesyddol 

11,712 11,658 11,541 11,541 

Cyfanswm 
Treftadaeth 

114,768 112,799 113,408 113,454 

Tai 154,765 151,147 151,792 151,792 

CYFANSWM 
REFENIW 

269,533 263,946 265,200 265,246 

     

Cyfalaf:     

Amgueddfeydd, 
archifau a 
llyfrgelloedd 

5,673 4,973 4,043 4,043 

Y celfyddydau 485 480 475 475 

Chwaraeon a 
gweithgaredd corfforol 

345 345 345 345 

Yr amgylchedd 5,500 5,313 5,031 5,031 

Tudalen 3



hanesyddol 

Cyfanswm 
Treftadaeth 

12,003 11,111 9,894 9,894 

Tai 249,392 231,970 206,782 206,782 

CYFANSWM 
CYFALAF 

261,395 243,081 216,676 216,676 

     

CYFANSWM Y 
GYLLIDEB* 

530,928 507,027 481,876 481,922 

 
* Nid yw’r ffigurau hyn yn cynnwys cyllidebau Gwariant a Reolir yn Flynyddol. 
Ceir y manylion isod. 
 
4. Un ‘ysgafn’ fu proses y gyllideb eleni. O gymharu â’r cynlluniau dangosol a 

gyhoeddwyd yn y Gyllideb Derfynol y llynedd (fel y cafodd ei hailddatgan 
ar gyfer y newidiadau portffolio), mae cyfanswm y dyraniad ar gyfer Tai a 
Threftadaeth wedi cynyddu £0.353 miliwn yn 2012-13 a £0.621 miliwn yn 
2013-14.  Mae’r cynllun dangosol ar gyfer 2014-15, a gyhoeddir am y tro 
cyntaf, yn cynnwys £0.046 miliwn yn ychwanegol uwchlaw ffigur 2013-14. 

 
5. Mae’r cyllidebau ychwanegol yn ymwneud â: 

 
• Dyraniadau ychwanegol i gostau rhedeg Cadw o £0.353 miliwn yn 

2012-13, a fydd yn codi i £0.621 miliwn yn 2014-15, gan gydnabod ei 
rôl o ran darparu gwasanaethau rheng flaen sy’n dod â budd i 
dwristiaeth, addysg a datblygu cynaliadwy ehangach; a  

 

• Swm ychwanegol o £0.046 miliwn yn 2014-15 ar gyfer yr ymrwymiad i 
Nofio am Ddim. 

 
Y Rhaglen Lywodraethu 
 

6. Mae gan yr Adran gylch gwaith eang.  Mae’n gyfrifol am ddatblygu a 
chyflawni polisïau ar dai, adfywio, y celfyddydau, diwylliant, chwaraeon a 
hamdden egnïol, amgueddfeydd, archifau a llyfrgelloedd, a’r amgylchedd 
hanesyddol. 

 
7. Mae gan yr adran sawl prif nod a adlewyrchir yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu 

drwyddi draw.  Dengys y gyllideb hon sut y byddwn yn cyflawni yn 2012-
13 a thu hwnt.  Byddwn yn sicrhau bod gan bobl gartrefi cynnes a diogel 
o’r radd flaenaf i fyw ynddynt. Daw effaith ein hymyriadau yn y maes hwn 
yn amlycach dros y tymor hir wrth i ni wneud newidiadau i ddeddfwriaeth 
gynllunio ac wrth i ni ehangu ein stoc o dai cymdeithasol. Yn y tymor byr, 
fodd bynnag, bydd dylanwadau economaidd fel polisi cyllidol ac ariannol y 
DU yn cael effaith fawr ar ein llwyddiant cyffredinol. 

 
8. Byddwn yn parhau i gefnogi diwylliant a threftadaeth Cymru i ddarparu 

gwell sylfaen i fywyd drwy hybu ffyniant lleoedd, diwylliant, chwaraeon a’r 
cyfryngau. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 4



Tai 
 

9. Y llynedd, cyhoeddwyd ein strategaeth dai genedlaethol Gwella Bywydau 
a Chymunedau – Cartrefi yng Nghymru. Ynddi yr oeddem yn pennu’n 
blaenoriaethau strategol ar gyfer tai, sef cynyddu’r cyflenwad o dai, gwella 
eu hansawdd, a gwella gwasanaethau sy’n gysylltiedig â thai – yn 
enwedig yn achos pobl agored i niwed neu’n ddigartref. 

 
Cynyddu’r cyflenwad o dai 

 
10. Rydym yn awyddus i fynd i’r afael â materion sy’n ymwneud â'r cyflenwad 

o dai er mwyn bodloni’r galw a chynyddu nifer y tai fforddiadwy.  Bydd 
hynny hefyd yn help i fynd i’r afael â digartrefedd.  Rydym yn buddsoddi 
cyfanswm o £57 miliwn (cyfalaf o £55 miliwn a refeniw o £2  filiwn) yn y 
Rhaglen Grant Tai Cymdeithasol yn 2011-12. Bydd y ffigur hwn yn 
gostwng i ryw £46 miliwn yn y dyfodol. Serch hynny, mae’n bwysig cofio’r 
twf yn y rhaglen hon yn y blynyddoedd diwethaf, yn ogystal â’r cyllid 
ychwanegol o £62 miliwn a ddarparwyd o’r Gronfa Buddsoddi Cyfalaf 
Strategol. 

 
11. Hefyd, ac mewn ymateb i’r gostyngiad yn y cyllidebau cyfalaf, rydym yn 

ystyried dulliau arloesol newydd o gynyddu’r cyflenwad gyda chynnyrch 
megis “Rhent Cyntaf” – tai gyda rhent canolradd sydd angen llai o grant tai 
cymdeithasol i’w datblygu; a Phartneriaeth Tai Cymru a lansiwyd yn 
ddiweddar – partneriaeth gyda chymdeithasau tai sy’n buddsoddi ecwiti. 

 
Ansawdd tai 

 
12. Un o flaenoriaethau allweddol Llywodraeth Cymru yw sicrhau fod gan bobl 

gartref sy’n bodloni eu hanghenion  - cynnes, fforddiadwy, diogel, mewn 
cyflwr da, nad yw’n cael effaith niweidiol ar yr amgylchedd. Mae tŷ yn 
annatod i fywydau pobl. Mae’n effeithio ar iechyd a lles, ansawdd bywyd, a 
chyfleoedd unigolion a theuluoedd gydol eu hoes. Dyna pam yr wyf yn 
cadw’r Lwfans Atgyweiriadau Mawr ar £108 miliwn y flwyddyn.  Mae’r 
gyllideb hon yn ariannu atgyweiriadau mawr i dai awdurdodau lleol, a 
thaliadau gwaddoli ar gyfer tai a arferai fod ym meddiant yr awdurdodau 
lleol ond sydd bellach wedi’u trosglwyddo i landlordiaid newydd.  Mae’r 
ddwy ffrwd ariannu hon yn helpu i gyflawni Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru, 
sy’n anelu at sicrhau fod y stoc o dai cymdeithasol yng Nghymru yn addas 
ar gyfer yr 21ain ganrif. 

 
Gwasanaethau sy’n gysylltiedig â thai 
 

13. Rydym hefyd yn parhau i fuddsoddi dros £130 miliwn y flwyddyn mewn 
cymorth sy’n gysylltiedig â thai i bobl agored i niwed drwy’r Rhaglen 
Cefnogi Pobl.  Mae hyn yn flaenoriaeth os ydym i fynd i’r afael ag effaith y 
diwygiadau lles a’r cyni economaidd.  Mae’r rhaglen yn cefnogi 50,000 o 
bobl y flwyddyn ac yn rhoi gwerth da am arian am bob punt a wariwn yng 
Nghymru.  Rydym hefyd yn ymrwymedig i atal digartrefedd, sy’n un o’r 
enghreifftiau gwaethaf o amddifadedd. 

 
 

Tudalen 5



14. Mae galluogi pobl i fyw’n annibynnol yn eu cartrefi eu hunain cyhyd ag y 
bo modd hefyd yn flaenoriaeth i Lywodraeth Cymru a dyna pam yr ydym 
wedi diogelu ein buddsoddiad yn y Rhaglen Addasiadau Brys.  Mae’r 
rhaglen hefyd yn helpu i leihau’r pwysau ar y GIG a gwasanaethau 
cymdeithasol drwy alluogi pobl i adael yr ysbyty neu ofal preswyl cyn 
gynted ag y bo modd. 

 
15. O fewn y cyllidebau Tai, mae llinell yn y gyllideb ar gyfer cyllid cyfalaf 

cyffredinol awdurdodau lleol, sy’n gyfanswm o £47.2 miliwn yn 2012-13.  
Nid yw’r arian hwn wedi’i neilltuo, ac felly, wedi iddo gael ei ddosbarthu i’r 
awdurdodau lleol fel rhan o’r setliad llywodraeth leol, nid oes modd i ni roi 
cyfarwyddyd ynghylch sut i’w wario.  

 
Treftadaeth 
 

16. Mae rhoi gwell sylfaen i fywyd drwy sicrhau ffyniant lleoedd, diwylliant, 
chwaraeon a’r cyfryngau yn un o brif flaenoriaethau Llywodraeth Cymru.  
Byddwn yn parhau i roi cymorth ariannol i Gyngor Celfyddydau Cymru, 
Amgueddfa Cymru, Llyfrgell Genedlaethol Cymru, Chwaraeon Cymru a 
Cadw. 

 
17. Rydym yn sylweddoli mor bwysig yw’r celfyddydau i Gymru a’r cyfraniad y 

gallant ei wneud i ansawdd bywydau pobl.  Dyna pam yr ydym yn parhau i 
ddiogelu’r cyllid ar gyfer y celfyddydau yn y Gyllideb hon.  Byddwn hefyd 
yn parhau i roi cymorth ariannol i Ardd Fotaneg Genedlaethol Cymru. 

 
18. Bydd y cymorth a roddwn i Amgueddfa Cymru a Llyfrgell Genedlaethol 

Cymru yn ein galluogi i barhau i roi mynediad am ddim i safleoedd yr 
Amgueddfa Genedlaethol. Byddwn hefyd yn parhau i roi cymorth ariannol 
ac arweiniad strategol i amgueddfeydd, archifau a llyfrgelloedd drwy 
CyMAL gan gydnabod y cyfraniad sylweddol y mae’r gwasanaethau hyn 
yn ei wneud i gymunedau lleol o ran mynediad at wybodaeth a 
threftadaeth ddiwylliannol, a’u rôl o ran cefnogi twristiaeth yng Nghymru. 

 
19. Cadw yw gwasanaeth amgylchedd hanesyddol Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae 

Cadw yn gyfrifol am warchod y dreftadaeth hon, sy’n cynnwys Safleoedd 
Treftadaeth y Byd, adeiladau rhestredig a henebion cofrestredig.  Mae 
Cadw hefyd yn gweithio i gynnal cymeriad unigryw ein trefi a’n tirwedd ac 
yn helpu pobl ddeall a gofalu am eu lleoliad a’u hanes.  Rydym yn 
cydnabod mor bwysig yw’r cyfraniad hwn yn economaidd ac yn 
gymdeithasol ac rydym yn ymrwymedig i’w rhaglen barhaus o waith. 

 
20. Hefyd, rydym yn ymrwymedig i gyflawni’r Prosiect Twristiaeth £19 miliwn, 

a fydd yn gwella cwmpas llawer o’n henebion a phrofiadau ein hymwelwyr.  
Llywodraeth Cymru a Chronfeydd Cydgyfeirio’r Undeb Ewropeaidd sy’n 
ariannu’r prosiect yn bennaf.  Bydd yn helpu i wneud yn fawr o werth 
economaidd ein treftadaeth drwy gynyddu nifer, hyd a gwerth yr 
ymweliadau â Chymru.  Bydd y prosiect hefyd yn helpu i wneud 
treftadaeth ragorol Cymru yn agored i gynulleidfa ehangach drwy ei 
gwneud yn fwy pleserus i ymwelwyr a phobl sy’n byw yng Nghymru. Cadw 
sy’n arwain y prosiect wedi iddo wneud cais llwyddiannus am Gyllid 
Cydgyfeirio.  Bydd y prosiect yn rhedeg tan fis Rhagfyr 2014 ac mae’n 

Tudalen 6



werth cyfanswm o £19 miliwn.  Mae rhan o raglen gwaith cyfalaf Cadw yn 
rhoi arian cyfatebol ar gyfer y prosiect hwn. 

 
21. Yr ydym hefyd yn cydnabod y manteision lu a all ddod yn sgil chwaraeon a 

gweithgaredd corfforol ar wahanol lefelau, gan gynnwys gwell iechyd a lles 
i unigolion.  I gefnogi hyn, rydym yn ymrwymedig i barhau â’n hymrwymiad 
i nofio am ddim, ac rydym wedi darparu cyllid ychwanegol o £46k yn 2014-
15 i gynnal y ddarpariaeth. 

 
Gwariant a Reolir yn Flynyddol 
 

22. Mae’r cyllidebau Gwariant a Reolir yn Flynyddol yn cynnwys: 
 

• Darpariaeth ar gyfer unrhyw daliadau pensiwn a all fod yn 
angenrheidiol yn achos cynlluniau pensiwn Amgueddfa 
Genedlaethol Cymru a Llyfrgell Genedlaethol Cymru. Y cyfanswm 
ar gyfer 2012-13 yw £2.490 miliwn. Cyllideb heb fod yn arian parod 
yw hon;  

 

• Credyd  - o £61 miliwn yn 2012-13 - sy’n cynrychioli’r swm, a 
gyfrifwyd ar sail fformiwla, y mae angen i Awdurdodau Lleol Cymru 
ei ad-dalu i’r Trysorlys yn achos y system Cymhorthdal y Cyfrif 
Refeniw Tai (HRAS). Yn Lloegr, mae awdurdodau lleol wedi prynu 
eu hunain allan o’r system, ac rydym ar hyn o bryd yn ystyried y 
posibilrwydd o wneud yr un modd yng Nghymru. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Tudalen 7



Draft Budget 2012/13 - 2014/15 Annex A 

CELG(4)-05-11 : Paper 2 : Annex A

SPA Actions
Budget expenditure Line

(BEL)
BEL

2011-12             

Final Budget         

2012-13 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

2014-15

Indicative 

Plans         

Stock trans/Comm mutual Support & Capacity Build 1162 274 274 274 274

Total Achieve quality housing 274 274 274 274

Regulation Inspection Programme 1161 176 172 173 173

Management and Advice 1181 246 246 246 246

Affordable Homes 1014 115 115 115 115

SHMG Black Minority Ethinc (BME) Housing Budget 1221 392 0 0 0

Social Housing Management Grant 1220 1,688 2,016 2,027 2,027

Total Develop housing policy, legislation and regulation 2,617 2,549 2,561 2,561

Home Improvement Agencies 1100 4,783 4,671 4,691 4,691

Rapid Response Adapt Prog 1285 440 430 432 432

Supported People Grant 1011 62,395 135,978 136,558 136,558

Supporting People Grant-Local Authorities 1020 75,690 0 0 0

SHRG Rev Subs Misuse/Young Offenders 1010 1,148 0 0 0

Total Enable people to live independent lives 144,456 141,079 141,681 141,681

Housing Enablers 1286 97 95 95 95

Total Increase the supply and choice of housing 97 95 95 95

Homelessness & Rough Sleeping 1120 7,321 7,150 7,181 7,181

Total Tackle homelessness 7,321 7,150 7,181 7,181

154,765 151,147 151,792 151,792

Implementation of Strategic Regeneration areas Implementation of Strategic Regeneration areas 4151 5,189 6,136 6,397 6,397

Manage Delivery of Legacy Regeneration Areas Manage Delivery of Legacy Regeneration Areas 4162 8,200 8,200 8,000 8,000

Prepare Future Strategic Regeneration Areas Prepare Future Strategic Regeneration Areas 0 0 0 0

Groundwork & Coalfields Regeneration Trust Groundwork & Coalfields Regeneration Trust 1400 1,100 0 0 0

14,489 14,336 14,397 14,397

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales - Running costs 5540 24,541 24,051 24,040 24,040

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales - Current receipts 5540 -1,604 -1,604 -1,604 -1,604

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales - Depreciation 5540 1,120 1,120 1,120 1,120

Foster Usage & Lifelong Learning through Museum services 24,057 23,567 23,556 23,556

National Library of Wales - Running costs/Current expenditure 5660 11,046 10,825 10,821 10,821

National Library of Wales - Current receipts 5660 -400 -400 -400 -400

National Library of Wales - Depreciation 5660 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250

Foster Usage & Lifelong Learning through Library services 11,896 11,675 11,671 11,671

CyMAL - Current expenditure 6170 227 216 206 206

CyMAL - Grants 6170 1,711 1,678 1,712 1,712

CyMAL - Peoples' Collection 6170 300 300 300 300

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library serviices 2,238 2,194 2,218 2,218

38,191 37,436 37,445 37,445

Arts Council of Wales - Running costs 5800 2,379 2,284 2,181 2,181

Arts Council of Wales - Current expenditure (Inc WMC) 5800 31,759 31,218 31,490 31,490

Arts Council of Wales - Depreciation 5800 119 119 119 119

Support for the Arts (Inc NBGW) 5812 1,140 1,181 1,853 1,853

Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others 35,397 34,802 35,643 35,643

Welsh Books Council - Running costs 6150 1,258 1,207 1,153 1,153

Welsh Books Council - Current Grants 6150 2,773 2,773 2,773 2,773

Promote wider use of the Welsh language via the WLB & others 4,031 3,980 3,926 3,926

39,428 38,782 39,569 39,569

Sports Council for Wales - Running costs 5900 1,448 1,390 1,327 1,327

Sports Council for Wales - Depreciation 5900 779 779 779 779

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Current expenditure 6010 23,049 22,600 22,400 22,400

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Free Swimming 6010 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,546

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Current receipts 6010 -3,484 -3,484 -3,484 -3,484

Support for Sport & Physical activity 6012 145 138 331 331

25,437 24,923 24,853 24,899

Cadw - Running costs/Current expenditure 2700 12,124 12,196 12,144 12,144

Cadw - Grants 2700 2,035 1,995 2,016 2,016

Cadw - Current receipts 2700 -5,000 -5,000 -5,000 -5,000

CADW - Depreciation 2700 275 275 275 275

RCAHM - Running costs/Current expenditure 6200 2,055 1,973 1,885 1,885

RCAHM - Grants 6200 169 165 167 167

RCAHM - Current receipts 6200 -80 -80 -80 -80

RCAHM - Depreciation 6200 134 134 134 134

11,712 11,658 11,541 11,541

284,022 278,282 279,597 279,643

SPA Actions
2011-12             

Final Budget         

2012-13 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

Major Repairs Allowance 1061 108,000 108,000 108,000 108,000

Housing General Support 1062 53,906 47,186 37,470 37,470

Renewal Areas 1063 16,597 14,528 11,537 11,537

Total Achieve quality housing 178,503 169,714 157,007 157,007

Enable people to live independent lives Rapid Response Adapt Prog 1285 1,641 1,641 1,641 1,641

Total Enable people to live independent lives 1,641 1,641 1,641 1,641

Social Housing Grants (SHG) 982 62,785 55,198 43,833 43,833

Receipts/Repayments of SHG following Property Sale 1000 275 0 0 0

ExtraCare 1005 6,188 5,417 4,301 4,301

Total Increase the supply and choice of housing 69,248 60,615 48,134 48,134

249,392 231,970 206,782 206,782

Implementation of Strategic Regeneration areas Implementation of Strategic Regeneration areas 4151 39,693 36,500 33,000 33,000

Develop housing policy, legislation and regulation

Enable people to live independent lives

Increase the supply and choice of housing

Tackle homelessness

Housing

Achieve quality housing

Regeneration

Total Regeneration

Support and sustain a 

strong arts sector via the 

Arts Council and others

Total Revenue - Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

CAPITAL BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit

Housing

Achieve quality housing

Increase the supply and choice of housing

Total Museum, Archive and Libraries

Total Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes

Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others

Media and Publishing

Total Housing

Museums, Archive and 

Libraries

Total Conserve, protect,sustain and promote access to the historic environment

Total Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others

Total Housing

 Conserve, 

protect,sustain and 

promote access to the 

historic environment

Conserve, protect,sustain and promote access to the historic environment

Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes

Delivery of effective 

sports & physical activity 

programmes

HOUSING, REGENERATION AND HERITAGE MAIN EXPENDITURE GROUP (MEG)

REVENUE BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit

Media and Publishing

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services

Tudalen 8



Draft Budget 2012/13 - 2014/15 Annex A 

Manage Delivery of Legacy Regeneration Areas Manage Delivery of Legacy Regeneration Areas 4162 3,900 3,400 2,000 2,000

Prepare Future Strategic Regeneration Areas Prepare Future Strategic Regeneration Areas 0 0 0 0

Local Authority Regeneration General Capital Funding Local Authority Regeneration General Capital Funding 1380 11,500 11,577 10,888 10,888

Groundwork & Coalfields Regeneration Trust Groundwork & Coalfields Regeneration Trust 1400 250 0 0 0

55,343 51,477 45,888 45,888

Amgueddfa Cymru - NMW - Capital Maintenance Grant 5540 600 600 600 600

Amgueddfa Cymru - NMW - Speciman Purchase Grant 5540 538 538 538 538

Amgueddfa Cymru - NMW - St Fagans 5540 1,980 1,000 1,000 1,000

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services 3,118 2,138 2,138 2,138

National Library of Wales - Capital Maintenance Grant 5660 550 550 550 550

National Library of Wales - Speciman Purchase Grant 5660 305 305 305 305

National Library of Wales - Electronic Legal Deposit 5660 100 100 0 0

National Library of Wales - Replace Library roof 5660 0 530 0 0

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services 955 1,485 855 855

CyMAL - Peoples' Collection 6170 100 100 50 50

CyMAL Capital 6170 1,500 1,250 1,000 1,000

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services 1,600 1,350 1,050 1,050

5,673 4,973 4,043 4,043

Arts Council of Wales - Capital Investment (Inc WMC) 5800 355 355 355 355

Support for the Arts - Capital Investment (Inc NBGW) 5812 105 100 95 95

Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and other 460 455 450 450

Media and Publishing Media and Publishing Welsh Books Council - Capital 6150 25 25 25 25

485 480 475 475

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Capital expenditure 6010 400 400 400 400

Sport & Active Wales Fund - Capital receipts 6010 -55 -55 -55 -55

345 345 345 345

CADW - Capital expenditure 2700 5,485 5,298 5,016 5,016

RCAHM - Capital expenditure 6200 45 45 45 45

RCAHM - Capital receipts 6200 -30 -30 -30 -30

5,500 5,313 5,031 5,031

316,738 294,558 262,564 262,564

SPA Actions
2011-12             

Final Budget         

2012-13 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

Housing Achieve quality housing -72,000 -61,000 -55,000 -55,000

Museums 1,797 1,976 2,174 2,174

Libraries 468 514 566 566

2,265 2,490 2,740 2,740

-69,735 -58,510 -52,260 -52,260

2011-12             

Final Budget         

2012-13 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

2013-14 

Indicative 

Plans         

Revenue 284,022 278,282 279,597 279,643

Capital 316,738 294,558 262,564 262,564

Total DEL 600,760 572,840 542,161 542,207

AME -69,735 -58,510 -52,260 -52,260

531,025 514,330 489,901 489,947

Total Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes

Museums, Archive and 

Libraries

Total Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others

Total AME - Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

Total Museum, Archive and Libraries

Support and sustain a 

strong arts sector via the 

Arts Council and others

Support and sustain a strong arts sector via the Arts Council and others

Total Conserve, protect,sustain and promote access to the historic environment

Total Museum, Archive and Libraries

Total Capital - Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

REVENUE BUDGET - Actually Managed Expenditure

Regeneration

Total Regeneration

Museums, Archive and 

Libraries

 Conserve, 

protect,sustain and 

promote access to the 

historic environment

Conserve, protect,sustain and promote access to the historic environment

Total - Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

Summary - Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

Strategic Leadership for museum, archive & library services

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Museum Services

Foster Usage and Lifelong Learning through Library Services

Delivery of effective 

sports & physical activity 

programmes

Delivery of effective sports & physical activity programmes

Tudalen 9



 1 

CELG(4)-05-11 : Paper 3 : Paper to Note 
 
 
Paratowyd y ddogfen hon gan gyfreithwyr Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru er mwyn rhoi gwybodaeth a 
chyngor i Aelodau Cynulliad a'u cynorthwywyr ynghylch materion dan ystyriaeth gan y Cynulliad a'i 
bwyllgorau ac nid at unrhyw ddiben arall.  Gwnaed pob ymdrech i sicrhau fod yr wybodaeth a'r cyngor a 
gynhwysir ynddi yn gywir, ond ni dderbynir cyfrifoldeb am unrhyw ddibyniaeth a roddir arnynt gan 
drydydd partion. 
 
This document has been prepared by National Assembly for Wales lawyers in order to provide 
Assembly Members and their staff with information and advice in relation to matters under consideration 
by the Assembly and its committees and for no other purpose. Every effort has been made to ensure 
that the information and advice contained in it are accurate, but no liability is accepted for any reliance 
placed on them by third parties 
 

Communities, Equalities and Local Government 
 

Legal Advice Note 
 

1. Purpose and Background  

Whilst conducting an inquiry into Disability Hate Crime, the Communities, 
Equalities and Local Government Committee (“the Committee”), heard 
evidence that there were some failings regarding the efficacy of Information 
Sharing Protocols (“ISP’s”) governing the sharing of data between agencies. 
The risk of ISP’s not being used to their full potential is that agencies will be 
insufficiently informed to assist those most in need and the legislative 
framework within which the ISP lies may not be adhered to. The paper also 
examines both the general and specific legislative framework governing data 
sharing and the inherent weaknesses of any such powers and obligations 
within the legal framework. The Committee has also expressed an interest in 
data sharing within in a sole organisation and also issues that arise from the 
Crown Prosecution Service (“CPS”) in the context of disability hate crime. 

2. The Legal and Statutory Framework 

The principal general legislative instruments that control the exchange of 
information in the fulfilment of public sector responsibilities are: -  

• The Data Protection Act 1998 (“DPA”) 

• The Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”) 

• The Common Law tort of the breach of Confidence 

• The law that governs the action of public bodies:-Administrative Law 

• The Freedom of Information Act 2000 (“FOIA”) 

• The Caldicott Principles (where the sharing of information relates to 
health and social organisations’ use of patient identifiable information) 

3. The Difference between the FOIA and DPA:- 

The ISP’s are principally concerned with the sharing of personal data, in 
which case if an applicant is requesting personal information about himself or 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 10



 2 

herself or another person then under the FOIA a request for personal 
information must be treated under sections 7 to 9 of the DPA. Consequently, it 
would be preferable if requests concerning personal information would be 
treated as requests under the DPA.   

4. Disclosure 

Under the Common Law Duty of Confidence, the DPA and the HRA it is 
possible to disclose information without consent in the cases of serious public 
interest (detection or prevention of a crime) or in the best interests of an 
individual. Decisions regarding the disclosure of information without consent 
must be made on a case-by-case basis. Any disclosure must always be 
proportionate and the minimum necessary to achieve the necessary objective. 
Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights, provides a right to 
respect for one’s private and family life, his or her home and correspondence, 
and any interference with this qualified right by the state must be 
proportionate to the legitimate aim being pursued.  

The DPA does not define consent. Article 2 of the EC Directive 95/461, 
defines the data subject’s consent as “any freely given, specific and informed 
indication of his or her wishes by which the data subject signifies his or her 
agreement to personal data relating to him or her being processed,” and it 
should not be given unambiguously. “Explicit consent” is required for sensitive 
personal data whereas “consent” is merely required for personal data, which 
is not sensitive.  

The first consideration should be whether the individual has consented to the 
disclosure. Details of victims, witnesses, and complainants should not be 
disclosed without their written consent. If consent has been withheld or cannot 
be obtained the nominated officer should assess whether the lack of consent 
can be overcome. Specific procedures will apply where the data subject is 
either not considered able to give informed consent itself because of the data 
subject’s age or where the data subject has a condition which means the data 
subject does not have the capacity to give informed consent. In these 
circumstances the relevant policy of the Partner Organisation should be 
referred to. 

Disclosure should be assessed for its potential impact on others who may be 
identifiable from the data (such as witnesses or staff who are involved in 
cases) or whose vulnerability makes their interests the over-riding 
consideration (such as children at risk). 

Guidance from the Welsh Government (“WG”) together with the Secretary of 
State2, provides advice on disclosure in borderline cases:-“It is increasingly 
recognised in practice that a failure to share information, even at a level of a 
“niggling worry”, may have serious consequences for the welfare of a child or 

                                                 
1
 EC Directive 95/46 of the European Parliament of the Council of 24 October 1995 on the protection 

of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data and the free movement of such data 
2
 Safeguarding Children:-Working Together Under the Children Act 2004 

Tudalen 11



 3 

young person or for others. Lack of information increases the risk of children 
slipping through the net. You should not be deterred from sharing information 
by the feeling that there are legal hurdles nor should you assume that the 
“safer” course is not to share information.” 

Consent is not the only means by which personal data can be disclosed. 
Under the DPA in order to disclose personal data at least one condition in 
Schedule 2 must be met. In order to disclose sensitive personal data at least 
one condition in both Schedules 2 and 3 must be met. Sensitive personal data 
includes physical or mental health condition; sexual life or commission or 
alleged commission of any offence. The conditions in Schedule 3 for sensitive 
data are narrower than those in Schedule 2. So it is axiomatic that the 
threshold is higher for the disclosure of sensitive personal information 
compared to personal information only. The conditions in Schedule 3 include:-
Explicit consent; Protection of the vital interests of the data subject or another 
person; Information made public by the data subject; Legal proceedings, 
advice and rights; Administration of justice, statutory functions, government 
department; medical purposes; Equal opportunities monitoring; and further 
conditions may be specified in a statutory instrument. 

This means that the exchange of information between relevant authorities 
investigating a case of child abuse will not be restricted under the Act 
because it will nearly always be the case that the exemptions will either 
constitute an overriding public interest in favour of sharing the information, or 
that disclosure will be permitted under Schedule 3 due to the “physical or 
mental health or condition” of the data subject.  

5. Information Sharing Protocols (“ISP’s”) 

ISP’s should provide an agreed framework, which underpins the work of multi-
agencies, for example Community Safety Partnerships (“CSP’s”) and their 
partner agencies and their use of information. In particular, the ISP should 
facilitate the secure sharing and management of information; and enable the 
responsible authorities in a CSP to meet their legislative obligations 
effectively. ISP’s should do this by clearly setting out the legislative framework 
and also what is expected of the Parties signed up to a Protocol including:- 

Clearly stated aims and objectives, including which Parties are signatory to 
the Protocol; purposes for which information may be shared and what parties 
the information can be shared with, restrictions on the use of information 
shared, provisions governing consultation; what information is to be shared, 
the transmitting of shared data, compliance with legal requirements, 
complaints procedure, and an indemnity clause arising out of any potential 
breaches of the protocol. 

Without a clear legal framework setting out the legal obligations on which the 
Protocol is based, and clear watertight provisions (as above) the efficacy of 
exchanging information under the Protocol will be inhibited, and the parties to 
the Protocol will not clearly understand what is expected of them to perform 
their roles effectively. The Protocols are not legally binding documents and so 

Tudalen 12



 4 

failure to comply with a provision by one of the signatory parties will be difficult 
to enforce. An indemnity clause will assist in order to keep partner 
organisations fully indemnified against costs, expenses and claims arising out 
of any breach of the agreement and also the unauthorised or unlawful access, 
loss, theft, use, destruction or disclosure by the offending partner or its 
subcontractors of any personal data obtained in connection with the 
agreement. 

The private and voluntary sectors by nature of the fact that they are not public 
authorities do not need specific legal power to share information. They must 
however, fulfil the requirements of the DPA and Common Law Duty of 
Confidentiality. 

6. Information sharing within a single organisation (Local Authority used by 
way of example):- 

The Information Commissioner (“ICO”) has provided advice on whether and 
how departments within a local authority (“LA”) can share information. The 
ICO took the view that for the purposes of the DPA a LA is a single 
organisation, which makes its own decisions about how personal information 
is used. If one department in an LA passes information to another department 
within the same LA, this is not a disclosure of personal information as defined 
by the DPA. But if one LA department passes information to another LA 
department so that it can be used for a different purpose, then this will be a 
secondary use by the LA of that personal information. The LA must satisfy 
itself that such sharing complies with the data protection principles, the most 
relevant being the first and second (fair and lawful processing and compliance 
with the conditions in Schedules 2 and 3 of the DPA) and by formally notifying 
the ICO of the purpose of the disclosure. Consequently, unless there is an 
express statutory authority for sharing (for example The Social Security 
Administration Act 1992, section 7B provides for LAS’s to use social security 
information held by them in relation to Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Benefit purposes and section 122E allows a LA administering Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax Benefit to share “relevant benefit information”) then it 
would be preferable for a LA to avoid secondary use of disclosure unless it 
has express lawful authority for doing so.  

7. Specific Legislative provisions providing a power or a duty on public 
authorities to share information in specific circumstances:-  

i) Section 115 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (“CDA”) allows information 
to be shared for the purposes of community safety between Police authorities, 
Local authorities, Probation Boards and Trusts, Fire and Rescue Authorities, 
and Health Authorities where it is necessary for fulfilling the duties contained 
in the CDA. The key condition to consider under section 115 is that “Relevant 
authorities” have the power (but note not a legal duty) to share information. 
This would include where it is necessary for the formulation and 
implementation of the local Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy.  

Tudalen 13



 5 

The parties have a discretion only under section 115 CDA and are not under 
any obligation to share information and may choose not to do so. If the 
provision were strengthened so that parties were under an obligation to share 
information then this would ensure that there would be no risk that any 
information concerning vulnerable people was not passed on to the 
appropriate authorities. The converse argument is that if the parties are under 
a compulsion to share the information then there may be a greater risk of 
misuse of that information.  

The power in section 115 CDA does not override legal conditions governing 
information sharing. These principally relate to the DPA, HRA and the 
common law of confidentiality.  

ii) The purpose of a Protocol under the CDA is to facilitate the exchange of 
information between the partner agencies that will enable the partnership to 
fulfil its statutory duty and work together (section 17 CDA 1998 as amended 
by the Police and Justice Act 2006 (“PJA 2006”) and the Policing and Crime 
Act 2009) to further public safety and for the prevention of crime and disorder. 

Section 17A of the CDA imposes a duty on a relevant authority to disclose to 
all other relevant authorities prescribed information which concerns the 
reduction of crime and disorder, and anti-social behaviour. Information is of a 
prescribed description if it is depersonalised (ie. statistical information). The 
Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 defines 
depersonalised information as information which does not constitute personal 
information under the DPA. When completely depersonalised information is 
requested the assumption is that it will be shared. However this does not 
require any authority to disclose information of a personal nature within the 
meaning of the DPA. So the duty will not operate in terms of the sharing of 
personal information.    

iii) The PJA 2006 and the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2009 (“2009 Regulations”) incorporate the following duty that 
relates to information sharing. When requested by a crime and disorder 
committee, responsible authorities and cooperating bodies are under a duty to 
share with the committee information that relates to the discharge of the 
authority’s crime and disorder functions, or that relates to the discharge by the 
committee of its review and scrutiny functions under section 19 of the PJA 
2006. This duty only applies under the following conditions:- 

• The information should be depersonalised information, except when 
the identification of an individual is necessary or appropriate in order to 
enable the crime and disorder committee exercise its powers properly; 
and 

• It should not include information that would prejudice legal 
proceedings, or the current or future operations of the responsible 
authorities. 

No explanation is provided as to the meaning of the committee “properly 
exercising its powers,” and the efficacy of the duty may depend partly on how 

Tudalen 14



 6 

often the committee meets. It is possible under 2009 Regulations for the 
committee to meet as rarely as once a year.   

iv) The Criminal Justice and Court Service Act 2000 (“CJCSA”) re-enacted by 
the Criminal Justice Act 2003 (“CJA”) provides for a specific duty for the 
Police and Probation to share information in order to make joint arrangements 
for the assessment and management of the risks posed by offenders who 
may cause serious harm to the public. The exchange of information relating to 
violent and sexual offenders between agencies is still important for the overall 
safety of “vulnerable people,” particularly where the individual has been the 
subject of abuse. The duty to co-operate under section 325 CJA “may 
include the exchange of information.” As parties have a discretion only to 
exchange information, and decide not to do so, vital information may be 
omitted.  

8. Disability Hate Crime 

Section 146 CJA provides that where it has been proved that hostility based 
on a person’s disability was demonstrated at the time the offence was 
committed, or immediately before or afterwards, or proved the offence was 
motivated by hostility towards the disability, the court must declare this an 
aggravating factor at the sentencing stage. It has been acknowledged by the 
CPS that the biggest barrier to perpetrators of disability hate crime being 
brought to justice is a widespread mindset that doesn’t see disabled people as 
targets of hostility, rather it prefers to see them as being taken advantage of 
for being “vulnerable.” It is a common view in a case that where disability is a 
factor in a case, it’s not because disabled people are “hated,” it is because 
they’re an easy target. Consequently, when considering the threshold tests for 
prosecution, the CPS consider that because a disabled person is regarded as 
“vulnerable” that in itself is an aggravating factor that would require a higher 
sentence, and so the prosecutor can circumvent section 146 CJA which deals 
with hostility and hatred. By not pursuing a prosecution pursuant to section 
146 CJA, the prosecutor is not marking the gravity of the case. The 
requirement is for evidence of “hostility” not “hate” and in the absence of a 
legal definition of “hostility,” consideration should be given to ordinary 
dictionary definitions which include spite, contempt or prejudice.  In the 
offences of incitement to racial and religious hatred the bar for prosecution is 
set deliberately high, this is particularly the case with incitement to religious 
hatred-because they impact on the right to free speech. But the high bar in 
those cases is clouding understanding of what is evidentially necessary to 
prove other hate crimes. What is required is that a case is brought building the 
full circumstances of the case such as repeated behaviour and a pattern of 
hostility. This can be compared with a recent case where an aggravated racial 
offence was brought solely on the basis of using the words “bloody 
foreigners”3. 

To prove an offence is aggravated under section 146 CJA, verbal hostility 
may need to be “heard” by the victim or witness and in some cases disabled 

                                                 
3
 R v. Rogers (2007) 2 WLR 280 

Tudalen 15



 7 

victims or witnesses might not be able to hear or may have a learning 
disability that results in difficulty communicating.  

In the CPS Policy on Prosecuting Hate Crime, it states that “it recognises that 
bullying may involve criminal acts.” The definition of “disability” is not as wide 
as it was previously under the Disability Discrimination Act 2005 (“DDA”).The 
definition under section 146 CJA includes any physical or mental impairment, 
whereas the definition under the DDA was more prescriptive and included 
people with a wide variety of disabilities, including those people living with HIV 
or AIDS, or have cancer or multiple sclerosis. Furthermore there is no 
statutory definition of “disability related incident.” The CPS has adopted a 
definition in the absence of a legal definition:-“Any incident which is perceived 
to be based upon prejudice towards or hatred of the victim because of their 
disability or so perceived by the victim or any other person.”    

Unlike, child abuse and domestic violence, there is no Protocol in force by the 
CPS in relation to Disability Hate Crimes and there is very little guidance for 
prosecutors. However there is a CPS Policy in force in relation to the 
prosecution of disability hate crimes. However, the lack of a Protocol in force 
does currently leave the victims of such crimes open to fewer prosecutions 
being pursued and at greater risk of vulnerability.    

9. Child Abuse cases 

Professionals can only work together effectively to protect children if there is 
an exchange of relevant information between them. This has been recognised 
by the courts4:-“The consequences of inter-agency co-operation is that there 
has to be a free exchange of information between social workers and police 
officers together engaged in an investigationEthe information gained by 
social workers in the course of their duties is however confidential and 
covered by the umbrella of public interest immunityEit can however be 
disclosed to fellow members of the child care team engaged in the 
investigation of the of possible abuse of the child concerned.” 

There are no specific mandatory laws in Great Britain that require 
professionals to report any suspicions they may have of child abuse to the 
authorities. In Northern Ireland however, it is an offence not to report an 
arrestable crime to the police, which by definition includes crime against 
children5.  

Lord Bingham CJ considered6 that where a public body acquires information 
relating to a member of the public which is not generally available and is 
potentially damaging, the body ought not to disclose such information save for 
the purpose of and the extent necessary for the performance of its public duty 
or enabling some other public body to perform its public duty.  

                                                 
4
 R v. G (a minor) (1996) 2 AER 65 

5
 Wallace, Isla and Bunting, Lisa (2007). An examination of local, national and international 

arrangements for the mandatory reporting of child abuse:-the implications for Northern Ireland. 

Belfast:-NSPCC N.I. Policy and Research Unit. 
6
 R v. Chief Constable of North Wales Police, ex party Thorpe (1996) QB 396 

Tudalen 16



 8 

The exchange of information between relevant authorities investigating a 
case of child abuse will not be restricted under the DPA because it will nearly 
always be the case that the exemptions constitute an overriding public interest 
in favour of sharing the information.  

The Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996 (“CPIA”), the Code of 
Practice made under section 23 of the Act and the Attorney General’s 
Guidelines on the disclosure of information in criminal proceedings govern the 
disclosure of unused prosecution material to the defence. The prosecution is 
under a continuing duty to keep under review whether material should be 
disclosed to the defence. 

Where the prosecution holds relevant sensitive material that meets the criteria 
for disclosure under the CPIA, then a Public interest immunity application 
(“PII”) should be made to the court to withhold this material from the defence, 
and any decision to withhold this material is a matter for the court to 
determine. PII allows the court to reconcile two conflicting public interests-the 
public interest in the fair administration of justice and the need to maintain the 
confidentiality of information the disclosure of which would be damaging to the 
public interest. PII is an exception to the general rule that all material that falls 
within the test for disclosure must be disclosed. 

Local authority social services files are no longer a “class” of material to which 
PII automatically applies. Each case and each document should be 
considered individually. Where PII can, or may apply, the LA may itself 
conduct the balancing exercise and agree that in an individual case, the 
conflicting public interest in the investigation and prosecution of a crime 
overrides the PII interests in confidentiality7. 

The position of PII with respect to social services files has recently been 
summarised8 as follows:-before embarking on a claim for PII, consideration 
should be given to the question whether the material passes the threshold test 
for disclosure under the CPIA, and if so why.  

Where a person subject to a criminal investigation has not been charged, it is 
often the case that the investigating police officer will want to know about the 
background of the complainant, family and associates. Such information may 
be helpful in assessing the veracity of any complaint and the likelihood of 
conviction. Occasionally if the local authority had disclosed material to the 
police at an earlier stage the person under investigation would not have been 
charged. In these circumstances the only mechanism to enable the 
investigators to make an application to the court for disclosure of such 
material is to consider whether it is appropriate to make an application for 
Special Procedure Material, under Schedule 1 of the Police and Criminal 
Evidence Act 1984. However, this is not a satisfactory approach because it 
goes against the ethos and spirit of the parties exchanging and sharing 
information where it is necessary to protect children. Therefore where full 

                                                 
7
 R v. Chief Constable of West Midland Police ex p. Wiley (1995) 1 AC 274 

8
 Re R (Care:-Nature of Proceedings) (2002) 1 FLR 755 

Tudalen 17



 9 

details of the nature of the investigation and the reasons for requiring such 
material are given to the LA and that material is treated as confidential, and 
then it is in the interests of justice for there to be disclosure of relevant 
material before charge. This would be considered “necessary” and in 
accordance with Schedule 3 of the DPA.     

Material obtained by social services in the course of an investigation 
concerning the welfare of a child under section 47 of the Children Act 1989 
(“CA 1989”), may be obtained jointly with the police. Relevant persons have a 
duty to assist social services with their enquiries by providing relevant 
information and advice if requested to do so, but are not obliged to do so if it 
would prove unreasonable in all the circumstances of the case. The duty is 
diluted by the get-out clause that they do not have to assist if it is 
unreasonable to do so and no explanation is given of what would be 
unreasonable. 

Section 26 CPIA provides that a person other than a police officer who is 
charged with a duty of conducting an investigation shall have regard to the 
Code of Practice under section 26 CPIA. Material obtained by social services 
in the course of an investigation under section 47 CA 1989, which may be 
obtained jointly with the police, but is not in possession of the police is not 
subject to the Code of Practice. This means that section 47 is not subject to 
the same rigorous and best practice criteria as material under section 26 
CPIA. It is acknowledged that where material is found jointly with the police, 
the local authority should as a matter of good practice have regard to the 
Code, but there is no legal duty upon them to do so.  

10. Vulnerable children at risk of homelessness 

Section 213A of the Housing Act 1996 ensures that a housing authority 
contacts social services (with consent) when a family with children is 
intentionally homeless, that is they are not owed the main homelessness duty 
and the family wishes to seek assistance under Part 3 of the CA 1989. If 
consent is withheld, the housing authority may disclose the information about 
homelessness to social services if the child is or may be at risk of significant 
harm. The duty also ensures that housing authorities co-operate with social 
services to provide the advice and assistance as is reasonable to help 
ineligible or intentionally homeless households with children to obtain 
accommodation. However, the duty does not extend to providing 
accommodation for the household.   

Section 25 of the Children Act 2004 (“CA 2004”) reflects the aims of the UN 
Convention on the Rights of the Child and strengthens the arrangements for 
promoting and protecting the welfare of children and young people. For the 
first time, it places a duty on LA’s in Wales to make arrangements to 
promote co-operation with a view to improving the well-being of children in 
their area in relation to physical and mental health, and protection from harm 
and neglect. In fulfilling this duty, the LA is required to promote co-operation 
between itself and its partners, these being the police, probation board, LHB 
and NHS Trust and National Council for Education and Training in Wales. 

Tudalen 18



 10 

These partners are also placed under a duty to co-operate with the LA in 
making these arrangements. The duty under section 25 does not explicitly 
state that co-operation involves “the exchange of information.”   

In order to safeguard and promote children’s welfare, the Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Boards should ensure that its partner agencies have in place 
arrangements under section 28 CA 2004. This provides that all staff in contact 
with children share information if they believe that a child and family may 
require additional services if a child is in need. This includes those children 
suffering or at risk from suffering harm; and guidance and training specifically 
covers the sharing of information between professions, organisations and 
agencies, as well as within them and arrangements for training take into 
account the value of multi-agency training as well as single agency training.  

Section 29 CA 2004 gives the Assembly (now the Welsh Ministers9) power to 
establish or to require LA’s to establish, maintain and operate a database of 
basic information on all children in the authority’s area or, if the duty to create 
a database or databases is placed on another body, to participate in its 
operation. Guidance or directions implemented by the Welsh Ministers under 
section 29 can specify how information is to be transferred between the 
databases. There is a limitation imposed which states that any such 
Regulations must be made with the consent of the Secretary of State. The 
Welsh Ministers have not as of yet taken advantage of the regulation making 
powers under this provision.  

11. The Wales Accord on the Sharing of Personal Information (“WASPI”) 

The WG has issued the “WASPI”, which provides the public sector, third 
sector and private service with a framework for development of protocols to 
govern the sharing of personal information for particular purposes. It is being 
developed to provide the “gold standard” for all Sharing Personal Information 
(SPI) in Wales. The Accord provides a single basis for protocols that underpin 
effective collaboration across organisations to make sure their staff can share 
information safely and legally. 

The WG together with the Secretary of State has issued Guidance10 which 
reflects the principles contained within the United Nations Convention on the 
Rights of the Child, ratified by the UK Government in 1991 and takes account 
of ECHR in particular Articles 6 and 8. A key aspect of the guidance is about 
information sharing. It is particularly informed by the requirements of the CA 
1989 and 2004, which provide a comprehensive framework for the care, and 
protection of children. This Guidance requires each person or body to which 
the section 28 duty applies to have regard to any guidance given to them for 
this purpose by the Secretary of State and the WG. This means they must 
take the guidance into account and, if they decide to depart from it, have clear 
reasons for doing so.  

                                                 
9
 Section 162, Para. 30 schedule 11 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 

10
 Safeguarding Children-Working Together under the Children Act 2004. 

Tudalen 19



 11 

12. Conclusion 

The ISP’s are only as efficient as the provisions contained therein and the 
general and specific statutory legislative framework which govern them. The 
ISP’s efficacy is also dependant on the signatories to an ISP complying with 
its provisions. There is an argument for the tightening of the specific 
legislative framework in some cases and also for greater clarity of some of 
provisions so that it is clear that co-operation includes “the exchange of 
information” where this is in doubt, and for specific provisions to be subject to 
a code of practice to ensure a best practice regime. There is scope for the 
Welsh Ministers to take advantage of unused regulation making powers to 
establish a database and transfer information with the consent of the 
Secretary of State. The risk of insufficient disability hate crime prosecutions 
proceeding may be overcome with clearly defined policy, with prosecution 
thresholds being amended and a protocol being in force so that signatories 
can receive direction and guidance as to the specific procedure and legislative 
framework within which the ISP lies, and receive greater clarity as to how and 
when information can be exchanged.    

Legal Services,  

National Assembly for Wales,  

October 2011 

Tudalen 20



 1 

CELG(4)-05-11 : Paper 3a : Paper to Note 
 
 
Paratowyd y ddogfen hon gan gyfreithwyr Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru er mwyn rhoi gwybodaeth a 
chyngor i Aelodau Cynulliad a'u cynorthwywyr ynghylch materion dan ystyriaeth gan y Cynulliad a'i 
bwyllgorau ac nid at unrhyw ddiben arall.  Gwnaed pob ymdrech i sicrhau fod yr wybodaeth a'r cyngor a 
gynhwysir ynddi yn gywir, ond ni dderbynir cyfrifoldeb am unrhyw ddibyniaeth a roddir arnynt gan 
drydydd partion. 
 
This document has been prepared by National Assembly for Wales lawyers in order to provide 
Assembly Members and their staff with information and advice in relation to matters under consideration 
by the Assembly and its committees and for no other purpose. Every effort has been made to ensure 
that the information and advice contained in it are accurate, but no liability is accepted for any reliance 
placed on them by third parties 
 

Communities, Equalities and Local Government 
 

Legal Advice Note 
 

Purpose and Background  

This paper is a précis of the attached paper, which is concerned with multi-
agency data sharing, and how it impacts upon wider issues affecting child 
abuse, disability hate crime and vulnerable children at risk of homelessness 
within the framework of both general and specific legislation governing data 
sharing. The paper also considers data sharing in a single organisation and 
uses a local authority by way of example. It is intended that this précis be read 
in conjunction with the attached paper which provides greater detail.   

Index 

Purpose and Background 

The legal and statutory framework 

The difference between the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (“FOIA”) and the 
Data Protection Act 1998 (“DPA”) 

Disclosure under the DPA, Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), and the duty of 
the law of confidence 

Information Sharing Protocols (“ISP”) 

Information sharing within a single organisation 

Specific Legislative Provisions providing a power or a duty on public 
authorities to share information in specific circumstances  

Disability Hate Crime 

Child Abuse Cases 

Tudalen 21



 2 

Vulnerable Children at Risk of Homelessness 

The Wales Accord on the Sharing of Personal Information 

Conclusion including Suggestions for committee for further consideration  

1. Purpose and Background 

Multi agency data sharing: -Evidence heard by the Committee that there are 
failings in the efficacy of the Information Sharing Protocols (“ISP’s”).  

Data sharing within a sole organisation: -the rules governing when data can 
and cannot be shared. 

Consideration of the general and more specific legislative background in 
relation to data sharing, including a critique and examination of any 
weaknesses of any power and/or obligations. 

2. The Legal and Statutory framework  

The Data Protection Act 1998 

The Human Rights Act 

The Common Law of tort of the Breach of Confidence 

The Law that governs the action of public bodies:-Administrative Law. 

The Freedom of Information Act 2000  

The Caldicott Principles (where the sharing of information relates to health 
and social organisations’ use of patients identifiable information. 

3. The differences between the DPA and the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
(“FOIA”):-The Information Sharing Protocols (“ISP’s”) are principally 
concerned with the sharing of personal data, in which case if an applicant is 
requesting personal information about himself or herself or another person 
then there is no right to know under the FOIA. Requests concerning personal 
information would be treated as requests under the DPA 

4. Disclosure under the DPA; HRA and the Common Law tort of the Breach of 
Confidence: - 

Information may be disclosed without consent where there is an overriding 
public interest to disclose. There is an enhanced threshold for disclosure of 
sensitive personal information. Consent is not always required for the 
disclosure of information if conditions are met in schedule 2 and 3 of the DPA, 
personal and sensitive information respectfully. Article 8 (right to respect for 
privacy, home and correspondence) of the European Convention on Human 

Tudalen 22



 3 

Rights (“ECHR”) is qualified and can be interfered with by the state, but must 
be proportionate.  

The duty of confidence can be overridden in limited circumstances including 
where matters of public interest override the benefit of non-disclosure and 
confidence to the individual.  

5. Information Sharing Protocols (“ISP’s):- 

Non-legal status so it is doubtful if provisions can be enforced effectively. 
ISP’s only as effective as the provisions within each Protocol. The efficacy of 
an ISP is also dependant on the specific legislative framework governing the 
exchange of information between the Parties under the Protocol. 

6. Information sharing in a single organisation:- 

The Law that governs the action of public bodies: -Administrative Law: -
Considered in the context of sole agency data sharing. Preferable to have 
express statutory authority to authorise the sharing of data but sharing of data 
may be possible under LGA 1972 and 2000. 

7. Specific Legislative Provisions providing a power or a duty to share or 
exchange information in specific circumstances: - 

• Section 115 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (“CDA”): -Power to share 
information between relevant authorities for fulfilling the duties within 
the CDA.   

• Section 17A CDA: -Imposes a duty on a relevant authority to disclose 
to all other relevant authorities prescribed information which concerns 
the reduction of crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour. Relates 
to depersonalised information only.   

• The Police and Justice Act 2006 (“PJA”) and the Crime and Disorder 
(Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 incorporates a duty that 
relates to information sharing. Duty mainly relates to depersonalised 
information. 

• The Criminal Justice and Court Service Act 2000 (“CJCSA”) re-enacted 
by the Criminal Justice Act 2003 (“CJA”) provides for a specific duty for 
the Police and Probation to share information in order to make joint 
arrangements for the assessment and management of the risks posed 
by offenders who may cause serious harm to the public.  

• Section 69 CJCSA placed a statutory duty on the Probation Service to 
offer victims of violent and sexual offences, the opportunity to make 
representations about the conditions of the release of the offender and 
to be kept informed of these:-now been repealed. 

8. Disability Hate Crime:- Prosecutions under section 146 CJA which deal with 
hostility and hatred may be circumvented by prosecutors. There is no Protocol 
in force for Disability Hate Crimes, and little guidance for prosecutors. 

9. Child Abuse Cases: - 

Tudalen 23



 4 

• Professionals can only work together effectively to protect children if 
there is an exchange of relevant information between them. 

• There are no specific mandatory laws in the UK that require 
professionals to report any suspicions they may have of child abuse to 
the authorities. 

• LA social services files are no longer a “class” of material to which 
“Public Interest Immunity” applies. 

• Special Procedure Material under Police and Criminal Evidence Act 
1984 (“PACE”) goes against the ethos and spirit of the Parties 
exchanging and sharing information where it is necessary to protect 
children. 

• Section 47 of the Children Act 1989 (“CA”): -Relevant persons have a 
duty to assist social services with their enquiries by providing relevant 
information and advice.  

10. Vulnerable children at risk of homelessness 

• Section 213A of the Housing Act (“HA”): -ensures that a housing 
authority contacts social services (with consent) when a family with 
children is ineligible or intentionally homeless. 

• Section 25 of the Children Act 2004 (“CA”) places a duty on LA’s in 
Wales to make arrangements to promote co-operation with a view to 
improving the well-being of children in their area.  

• Section 28 CA:-All staff in contact with children shares information if 
they believe that a child and family may require additional services. 

• Section 29 CA gives the Assembly (now the Welsh Ministers) power to 
establish or to require LA’s to establish a database of specific 
information on all children in the authority’s area or to participate in its 
operation.  

11. The Wales Accord on the Sharing of Personal Information (“WASPI”) :-
The Welsh Government (“WG”) has issued the WASPI, which provides the 
public sector, third sector and private service providers, with a framework for 
development of protocols to govern the sharing of personal information for 
particular purposes. 

The WG together with the Secretary of State has issued Guidance: -
Safeguarding Children-Working Together Under the Children Act 2004. 

12. Conclusion 

The tightening up and greater clarity of the specific legislative framework in 
some cases would be beneficial. Welsh Ministers would be advised to use 
existing regulatory powers to set up databases and transfer information with 
the consent of Secretary of State. It is advisable that there are clear ISP’s in 
force for disability related hate crimes. It would be advantageous if the CPS 
could clarify terminology where there is a lack of definitive statutory definitions 
and consider re-examining thresholds in relation to disability hate crime if this 
would aid prosecutions.  

Tudalen 24



 5 

Legal Services, National Assembly for Wales, October 2011 

Tudalen 25


	Agenda
	2 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 2012/2013 Llywodraeth Cymru
	CELG(4)-05-11 (p2)
	CELG(4)-05-11 (p2) - (Atodiad A) (Saesneg yn Unig)

	3 Papurau i'w nodi
	CELG(4)-05-11 (p3a)


